S-77 1767 (?), and 1797
Windsor Plantation
Co}.cesbury vicinity
private

Although known as the Burton Cannon farm during a large part of the
nineteenth century, the construction of this house and early history of the property
involves the Costen family, to whom Burton Cannon was related. The main house
dates from two distinct eighteenth century periods. The western half of the
story-and-a-half house is a brick ended structure evidently erected during the 1760s
by Isaac Costen and his wife, Sarah. A crudely eteched date of 1762 or 1767 was
found in the brick ended portion. The part brick, part frame "hall" plan house was
enlarged in 1797 by Henry Costen, who financed the construction of two-room
addition that gave the house an ell shape. A 1797 dated brick and the initials, "H.
C." document its date and owner. The interiors of the first floor rooms retains
notabled examples of eighteenth-century woodwork. The parlor is especially

significant with paneled hearth wall and raised panel wainscoting.

Henry Costen's housed is situated on a tract of land which was resurveyed in
1793 under the name of "Windsor." Comprising parts of "Bear Point" and "Flatland,"
the "Windsor Plantation" contained 482 1/4 acres west of Dividing Creek.
"Flatland" was a tract surveyed and granted to Isaac Costen in 1764, while "Bear
Point" had remained under Costen family ownership since 1679 when the 500-acre

survey was granted to Stephen Costen.

Isaac and Sarah Costen's son, Henry inherited the "Windsor" tract after his
mother's death. Henry financed the addition to his parent's house in 1797, and he

was assessed the following year for,

About 9 miles from Princess Anne, 1 Dwelling House 46 feet
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Page 2
long and 30 feet thereof 18 feet wide and the other 16 feet
of its length is 30 feet wide, built one end brick rest wood,
one story high.

Burton Cannon acquired title to the plantation in 1828 as the result of a
court settlement involving the dower rights of Henry Costen's former wife,
Anna.(GH 4/153) Burton and Matilda Harris Cannon occupied the house until the
mid nineteenth century. In 1849, possesion of the property was transferred to
William M.N.B. Costen, who was in the process of developing one of the most
impressive agricultural estates in the eastern portion of Somerset County.(WP 290)
Mr. Costen probably used the property as a tenant farm since he lived a short
distance south of this farm (see S-76). William Costen's son and administrator the
farm to Levin J. Butler in 1892 (HFL 10/155), and Butler family ownership
continued until 1914. (WJS 67/355). Between 1914 and 1957 seven different
owners held title to the property. 1In 1957, John Truden purchased the house and
eighty-one acres (GJB 184/142), executed a carefully planned restoration that saved
the house from further decay. The present owners acquired the farm in 1974

(283/333).
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DCESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located north of Dublin Road about one mile east of
Wellington is a one and one half story dwelling. The Burton
Cannon House is four bays wide and two bays deep. The front,
or south facade, is covered with beaded clapboard. The door
is in the third bay from the west end, slightly off-center.
There are two windows to the west and one window to the east
of the door, each with nine lights over six. The gable roof
is covered with "fishscale" shingles as is the hood over the
door. There is a pedimented dormer directly over each window
and the door. Each window has six over six lights. The
house sits on a raised brick foundation of English bond.

The west end is brick laid in Flemish bond with glazed
headers and grapevine mortar. Between the first and second
stories is a two-course belt. In the gable are two small win-
dows of four lights each. Two small windows on the first floor
have been bricked in. One brick in the south window reads
"rest'd 1958." The chimney, flush with the wall, rises through
the peak of the roof. The stepped water table is two courses
deep with the top two courses all stretcher bond. Beneath
these rows the bricks are laid in Flemish bond with random
glazing.

The east bay on the north side projects from the dwelling,
thus forming a catslide roof. The clapboard on the east and
west sides of this projection is beaded but that on the north
side is scored to simulate beading. The clapboard on the three
other bays is beaded. There is a door in the third bay from
the west and a window, nine lights over six, in each of the
others.

Attached to the east end is a twentieth century addition.
In the east gable of the older section is a small window, two
over two lights. A chimney pierces the roof at the peak.

The interior of the house features 5 center hall plan, wits
the parlor to the left of the entrance and the dining room to
the right. The parlor is approximately 17 feet sguare, with a
fireplace 4 1/2 feet by 3 feet, flanked by glassed-in china
cupboards, and a 9 foot ceiling.
and there is wainscoting with fielded panels on the remaining

three walls. :
A six-paneled door 3 feet by 6 feet 8 inches (with fielded

panels) leads from the parlor to the central hall, which fea-
tures 3 1/2 foot wide wooden stairs with square balusters,
turned newels, and scrolled step brackets. In both the hall
and the parlor there are chamfered beamsaand interesting late
eighteenth century paneling.

The 14 foot sgquare dining room to the right of the entranct

hall has a deep fireplace 3 1/2 feet by 3 feet with a Georgian
style wooden mantel, and an alcove on either side, similar to
the alcoves which flanked the parlor fireplace before theyv werc
converted into china cupboards. The wainscoting and paneling
in this room is identical to that found in the hall and parlor.

Off of the dining room in the projecting east bay of the

The fireplace wall is panelec,

i

SNOILDNYLSNI

It has a corner fire- |

_north side.is a 16 foot sguare bedroom.
(See Continuation Sheet No. 1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Typical of the frame, 1 1/2 story farmhouses of eight-
eenth century Maryland and Virginia, the Burton Cannon House
(built in the late 1790's) gains architectural significance ;

o RV R AT,
VT C L Brvem P aan o wr SEIPCERIN TN

o

~

kR v from its utilization of a style more commonly found in houses

% z erected earlier in the century. Scotchtown (built circa 1725

& o in Hanover County, Virginia) and Smithfield Plantation (built
X _ circa 1770 in Blacksburg, Virginia) are examples of earlier

2 - frame houses with facades which are similar to the Burton

3 Cannon House in their strong, simple, rectangular lines, in |
< e the slightly irregular spacing of their windows, in the raised |
< = brick foundations upon which they sit. Like Smithfield Plan- !
LR o tation, the Cannon House has four dormers, and all three |
< - houses have a central doorway. !
'E; - The Burton Cannon House is situated on a tract of land !
SN which was surveyed in 1793 for Henry Costen (also, Costin or
L z Coston) and patented for him in 1798 under the name of Windscr.
gig - Henry Costen was the probable builder of the house, and the

é{; w Federal..Direct Tax Assessment for 1798 for Dividing Creek |
I;?’ W Hundred lists him as the owner and occupant of

X (’

33? v ---one dwelling house 46 feet long and 30 feet thereof

. F 18 feet wide and the other 16 feet of its length is
"k 30 feet wide with 7 windows 4 1/2 by 2 1/2 and 4

2t windows 3 1/2 by 2 1/2 and 3 windows 20 inches sguare
T and 4 windows 1 by 1 1/2. Built _one end brick rest
;:h wood one story high---Value 400.1
A,
ﬁ According to an earlier research paper? (using material not at
ag present accessible) the chimney on the brick end of the house

. bears the date "1797" and the initials "H.C.," while other

bricks with the same initials and date have been found in the
east chimney and in the foundation wall on the southeast side.

-
P

lFederal Direct Tax Assessment of 1798 for Somerset
County,'Maryland, Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.

)

Lo 2RI ZEY & 7 BFTRC AN S IR
\‘”(\ ‘ ”m,

a4

2yilda Topfer, "Plans for the Restoration and Alteration
of an Eighteenth Century Farmhouse in Somerset County, Mary-
land" (unpublighed Master's Thesis, Drexel Institute of Tech-
nology, 1959), p. 12.
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) (See Continuation Sheet No. 1)
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{1 8. /RIGNIFICANCE, continued
R -2
¥fai. Not until 1892 did Windsor again pass out of the hands of the
oA Costen family, who had retained control of much of the tract for
yg;, over 150 years. Even during the period of Cannon ownership there |
R ET remained a link with the Costen family, since family Bible recordsi
Eoor list marriages between these two families.>
} ;g: Several nineteenth century deeds, in recording the sale of
g;g; land in this area, refer to "The Bare Swamp Road, leading from
! ;&u Cannon's store to Princess Anne Town;" it is probable that members
T of the Cannon family were connected with this business, as owners
N or operators.
Poes) Dividing Creek Hundred took its name from the creek which
e serves as a boundaryv line between Worcester and Somerset Counties.
;‘§1~ Somerset County, created in August of 1666, retained its original
} gz“” boundaries until 1742, when the General Assemblv of Maryland
) Rt erected Worcester County. The dividing line was to run "...to the
: L? mouth of D%viding Creek, thence up the westernmost side of said
el creek...,"” with Worcester County to include the area south of
cory the Pocomoke River, to the Maryland-Virginia line, and the area
oot east of Dividing Creek.
. l.;\,
Loes 9. BIBLIOGRAPHY, continued
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R Somerset County Land Records and Certificates of Patent. Hall
Fohal of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.
P -
e Waterman, Thomas Tileston. The Mansions of Virginia, 1706-1776.
Doe New York: Bonanza Books, 1945.
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g!\ Topfer, "Plans for Restoration”, p. 9.
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Y IS Burton Cannon House

Lo 7. DESCRIPTION, continued

SR

g EJV pPlace, a Georgian-style mantel, and the same original wainscotirs

~ ¥ L found in the other rooms.

S 1 . The present owner, in restoring the house in 10958, demolishedi
4 f& a kitchen extension which had been added on to the dining room

A A about 1860, adding a new kitchen in the same place and retaining
2%;« the original Carpenter-style fireplace mantel for the new fireplzace
3ol Also removed was a Victorian-tvpe porch which extended across thre
f’iﬁ front of the house, while another wing was added heyvond the kitcheh
e to provide a utilitv room and garage. On the second floor, where
3 in_ there were originally two rooms, one of the rooms was divided tc

n Tl provide a bathroom.

f;ﬁ; A 5 foot high crawl space under the house retains almost

g all of the original heavv oak supporting beams.

coAle There is some indication that the west end parlor of the
f'ﬂ“' house mav date from an earlier period. 1In rebuilding the parlor

- S, fireplace, a brick was found which was dated either 1762 or 1767.

o v It is nossible that only the east end of the house (the dining

N 2;; room and one bedroom) dates from 1797, when Fenry Costen mav have

enlarged an already-existing structure. However, the naneling is
the same in all the rooms where it is found, and dates from the
late eighteenth century.

“ .
[L ]

8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued
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.

i
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' i T

The Costen family had owned land in this part of Somerset
County since 1697, when Stenhen Costen, who emigrated to Marvland
from Northhamnton Countv in Virginia, acaouired 50N acres of a
tract called Beare Point. Part of Beare Point was included in
the 1793 survey undertaken for Henry Costen, along with part of
a tract called Flatland (originally granted in 1764 to Isaac
Costen) and a portion_of vacant land for a total of 482 acres,
to be called Windsor.3

Ownership of Windsor remained in the Costen family until
1821, when the tract was sold to Caleb Cannon, along with several
adjoining tracts. 1In 1828 Burton Cannon acouired 533 acres of
Windsor, but ownership returned to the Costen family in 1849,
when Burton Cannon sold "...all those tracts called Baltimore,
Indian Ridge and Windsor to William M. Costen, for $1,400."4
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3Certificate of Patent, Liber IC Folio 473, June 14, 1798,
for Henry Costen. Hall of Records, Annapolis, Marvland.

el -t

i

4Somerset County Land Records, WP4,/290, August, 1849, Hall
of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.
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Burton Cannon House (Windsor Plantatio
Wellington vicinity, Somerset Co.,MD
South elevation

1967, Daniel Church, photographer
Negative, MD Historical Trust
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